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BEFORE THE 
SURFACE TRANSPORTATION BOARD 

E.I. DUPONT DE NEMOURS AND COMPANY 

Complainant, 

v. 

NORFOLK SOUTHERN RAILWAY COMPANY 

Defendant. 

Docket No. NOR 42125 

COMPLAINT 

COMES NOW Complainant, E.I. du Pont de Nemours and Company ("DuPont"), 1007 

Market Street, Wilmington, DE 19898, and files this Complaint against Defendant, Norfolk 

Southem Railway Company ("NSR"), Three Commercial Place, Norfolk, VA 23510. DuPont 

brings this Complaint pursuant to 49 U.S.C. §§ 10701,10704,10707,11701 and 11704, and 49 

C.F.R. Part 1111. DuPont requests that the Surface Transportation Board ("STB" or "Board") 

prescribe reasonable rates and service terms for NSR's transportation ofthe movements set forth 

in Exhibits A and B to this Complaint. DuPont asks the Board to award damages, plus interest, 

to the extent that DuPont has paid or will pay common carrier rates in excess of a reasonable 

maximum rate for such transportation, beginning on June 1,2009. DuPont asks this Board to 

determine the reasonableness of NSR's rates using the constrained market pricing principles and 

procedures adopted in Coal Rate Guidelines—Nationwide, Ex Parte No. 347 (Sub-No. 1), 1, 

I.C.C. 2d 520 (1985), as further refined and applied in subsequent decisions issued by the 

Interstate Commerce Commission and the Board. 



In support ofthis Complaint, DuPont states as follows: 

The Parties 

1. DuPont is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Delaware, with 

its principal place of business in Wilmington, Delaware. DuPont is a science company. It 

combines biology and chemistry to manufacture products that meet societal needs for safe and 

abundant food, altemative fiiels, fibers such as Kevlar® and Nomex® (used to protect first 

responders, police and military personnel), and other sustainable solutions that enable a better, 

safer and healthier life for people everywhere. In the United States, DuPont employs over 

26,000 workers in 47 states. In addition to providing jobs and tax revenues to communities in 

nearly every state in the Union, DuPont is a vital contributor to our nation's balance of trade ~ in 

2009, the Company was our nation's 11"" largest exporter. DuPont is a major user of rail service 

to transport materials and products that it consumes and produces at its facilities in the United 

States and that it sells to customers domestically and around the world. 

2. NSR is a Class I common and contract carrier by railroad that engages in the 

transportation of property in interstate and intrastate commerce. Its headquarters are in Norfolk, 

Virginia. NSR is subject to the Interstate Commerce Commission Tennination Act of 1995 (49 

U.S.C. §§ 10101 etseq.) and to the jurisdiction ofthe Board. 

Description of the Issue Movements 

3. In this Complaint, DuPont challenges the reasonableness of NSR's rates for the 

movement of 27 commodities between 146 origin and destination pairs set forth in Exhibits A 

andB. 



4. NSR transports the commodities between the points identified in Exhibit A in 

single line service. The lanes in Exhibit A have been subject to NSR tariff rates since June 15, 

2010. 

5. NSR transports the commodities between the points identified in Exhibit B in 

joint line service. NSR has published AAR Accounting Rule 11 rates for these movements. The 

lanes in Exhibit B, Part 1, have been subject to NSR tariff rates since June 1,2009. The lanes in 

Exhibit B, Part 2, have been subject to NSR tariff rates since June 15,2010. The lanes in Exhibit 

B, Part 3, have been subject to NSR tariff rates begiiming on various dates between Jime 1,2009 

and June 15,2010, as specified in the Exhibit. 

The Challenged Rates 

6. Prior to Jime 1,2009, NSR transported the commodities between the points 

identified in Exhibit A and Part 1 of Exhibit B pursuant to a Master Contract with DuPont. 

When the parties were imable to reach agreement on new contract rates, NSR published common 

carrier tariff rates in a collection of private price lists for DuPont that currently are consolidated 

in NSRQ 64869,65178, and 65720. 

7. Prior to June 15,2010, NSR transported the commodities between the points 

identified in Exhibit A and Part 2 of Exhibit B pursuant to a Master Contract with DuPont. 

When the parties were unable to reach agreement on new contract rates, NSR published common 

carrier tariff rates in a collection of private price lists for DuPont that currently are consolidated 

in NSRQ 65718, 65720, and 70022. 

8. Between June 1,2009 and June 15,2010, NSR published tiie rates in Part 3 of 

Exhibit B for new DuPont traffic. NSR published these common carrier tariff rates in a 



collection of private price lists for DuPont that currentiy are consolidated in NSRQ 65720, and 

70022. 

9. Over two-thirds ofthe challenged rates have RA^C ratios above 300% and nearly 

half of the challenged rates have RA Ĉ ratios above 400%. Six ofthe challenged rates have 

RA^C ratios above 600% and five rates exceed 700%. 

10. In this Complaint, DuPont challenges the reasonableness of the NSR tariff rates 

identified in Exhibits A and B, as ofthe dates specified for each lane in those exhibits. 

Jurisdictional Allegations 

11. NSR possesses market dominance over the movements in Exhibits A and B. 

Therefore, pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 10707, the Board has jurisdiction over the rates and services 

provided by NSR and challenged by DuPont as uiu"easonable. 

12. The rates charged by NSR and challenged by DuPont for each ofthe movements 

in Exhibits A and B exceed 180 percent of NSR's variable cost for the service requested by 

DuPont, as determined in accordance witii 49 U.S.C. § 10707(d)(1). 

13. There is a lack of effective competition from other rail carriers for each of the 

movements in Exhibits A and B because NSR is the only rail carrier that provides service at 

either the origin or the destination. There is a lack of effective competition from non-rail modes 

for each ofthe movements in Exhibits A and B. 

Requested Relief 

14. NSR's common carrier rates for handling the movements in Exhibits A and B are 

unreasonable and violate 49 U.S.C. §§ 10701(d)(1) and 10702, which require NSR to establish 

reasonable rates. The Board should order NSR to cease these violations and it should prescribe 

maximum reasonable rates pursuant to 49 U.S.C. § 10704(a)(1). 



15. The Board should award reparations to DuPont, as provided under 49 U.S.C. 

§ 11704(b). The reparations should compensate DuPont for any and all amounts paid in excess 

ofthe reasonable rates prescribed by the Board pursuant to this proceeding, plus interest, 

beginning on the dates specified for each ofthe lanes in Exhibits A and B. 

16. The Board should prescribe a maximum reasonable rate and award reparations for 

a combined period often years, beginning June 1,2009. 

17. This Complaint includes any and all adjustments to the challenged rates, including 

adjustments to the applicable fuel surcharges, and any new rates established by NSR for the 

services described herein. 

WHEREFORE, Complainant, E.L du Pont de Nemours and Company prays that the 

Board: 

(1) require Defendant, Norfolk Southem Railway Company, to answer the charges 

alleged herein; 

(2) assign this Complaint for hearing under 49 C.F.R. Part 1111 and the stand-alone 

cost approach adopted in Coal Rate Guidelines—Nationwide, Ex Parte No. 347 (Sub-No. 1), 1 

I.C.C. 2d 520 (1985); 

(3) afier due hearing and investigation, find that the NSR's common carrier rates 

applicable to the transportation ofthe commodities and movements in Exhibits A and B ofthis 

Complaint are imreasonable; 

(4) prescribe just and reasonable rates and related rules and service terms for the 

future applicable to the rail transportation ofthe DuPont traffic in Exhibits A and B, pursuant to 

49 U.S.C. §§ 10704(a)(1) and 11701(a); 



(5) award DuPont reparations, plus applicable interest, in accordance with 49 U.S.C. 

§ 11704 for unlawful rates set by NSR for the period begiiming June 1,2009 to the effective date 

ofa decision by the Board prescribing just and reasonable rates; and 

(6) grant such other and further relief to DuPont as the Board may deem just and 

proper under the circumstances. 

Respectfully submitted, 

October 7,2010 

Jeffrey O. Moreno 
Sandra L. Brown 
David E. Benz 
Thompson Hine LLP 
1920 N Street, N.W., Suite 800 
Washington, D.C. 20036 
(202)331-8800 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that I have caused the Complaint to be served by express overnight 
I 
I 

courier, this 7th day of October 2010, on: 

James A Hixon 
Executive Vice President - Law & Corporate Relations 
Norfolk Southem Corporation 
Three Commercial Place 
Norfolk, VA 23510 

Jeffrey O. Moreno 


